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ADDENDUM NO. 3 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.  3405-17-0034 

For: Space Tracking Software as a Service (SaaS)  
(Revised) Closing Date: March 6, 2017, 12:00 O'clock Noon (Local Time) 

 
I.   REVISIONS: 
 
R1. Appendix B, 12.1(a) currently reads: 
 

(a) Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold the City and its Representatives harmless from all 
charges, losses, damages and expenses (including reasonable legal fees and 
disbursements) incurred in connection with any claims, demands, suits or actions incurred 
by any of them as a result of:  (i) Vendor’ or its Representatives’ wilful misconduct; or (ii) any 
breach of the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement.   

 
 Replace with: 
 

(a) Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold the City and its Representatives harmless from all 
charges, losses, damages and expenses (including reasonable legal fees and 
disbursements) incurred in connection with any claims, demands, suits or actions incurred 
by any of them as a result of:  (i) Vendor’ or its Representatives’ intentional misconduct, 
wilful misconduct or fraud; or (ii) any breach of the confidentiality provisions of this 
Agreement.   

 
R2. Appendix B, 12.1(c) currently reads: 
 

(c) Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold the City and its Representatives harmless from all 
charges, losses, damages and expenses (including reasonable legal fees and 
disbursements) incurred in connection with any claims, demands, suits or actions incurred 
by any of them arising from or relating to any physical injury, including death, or any loss of 
or damage to tangible property, caused by the Vendor or its Representatives.   

 
 Replace with: 
 

(c) Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold the City and its Representatives harmless from all 
charges, losses, damages and expenses (including reasonable legal fees and 
disbursements) incurred in connection with any claims, demands, suits or actions incurred 
by any of them arising from or relating to any physical injury, including death, or any loss of 
or damage to tangible property, caused by negligent act or omission of the Vendor or its 
Representatives.   

 
R3. Appendix B, 14.2(a) currently reads: 
 

(a) Commercial general liability insurance including bodily injury and death, personal injury, 
property damage including loss of use thereof, contractual liability, non-owned automobile 
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insurance liability, owners’ and contractors’ protective, products and completed operations 
and employers’ liability, with coverage including the activities and operations conducted by 
Vendor and for those whom Vendor is responsible at law. The policy(ies) will all have a limit 
(per occurrence and in the aggregate) of at least $2,000,000 and include:  (i) bodily injury, 
death and property damage; (ii) personal and advertising injury; (iii) products and completed 
operations (including blanket contractual and severability of interest); (iv) a cross liability 
clause; (v) broad form property damage; (v) premises and operations; (vi) employers’ and 
contingent employers’; and (vii) infringement of copyright and other Intellectual Property 
Rights;  

 
 Replace with: 
 

(a) Commercial general liability insurance including bodily injury and death, personal injury, 
property damage including loss of use thereof, contractual liability, non-owned automobile 
insurance liability, owners’ and contractors’ protective, products and completed operations 
and employers’ liability, with coverage including the activities and operations conducted by 
Vendor and for those whom Vendor is responsible at law. The policy(ies) will all have a limit 
(per occurrence and in the aggregate) of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 
annual aggregate and include:  (i) bodily injury, death and property damage; (ii) personal 
and advertising injury; (iii) products and completed operations (including blanket contractual 
and severability of interest); (iv) a cross liability clause; (v) broad form property damage; (v) 
premises and operations; (vi) employers’ and contingent employers’; and (vii) infringement 
of copyright and other Intellectual Property Rights;  

 
R4. Appendix B, 14.2(b) currently reads: 
 

(b) Professional liability/errors and omissions insurance in an amount of not less than 
$1,000,000 per claim or occurrence;  

 
 Replace with: 
 

(b) Professional liability/errors and omissions insurance in an amount of not less than 
$1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate;  

 
R5. Appendix B, 14.4 currently reads: 
 

14.4 Certificates.  Vendor will provide evidence of such insurance to the City, prior to 
beginning to provide Services and after that promptly on the request of the City.  The 
evidence will be in a form that has been approved by the City’s risk managers.  At the 
expiry of the policies of insurance, original signed certificates evidencing renewal will be 
provided to the City by Vendor without notice or demand.  This provision will survive the 
termination or expiration of the Agreement for a period of two years. 

 
 Replace with: 
 

14.4 Certificates.  Vendor will provide evidence of such insurance to the City, prior to 
beginning to provide Services and after that promptly on the request of the City.  The 
evidence will be in a form of Certificate of Insurance.  At the expiry of the policies of 
insurance, original signed certificates evidencing renewal will be provided to the City by 
Vendor without notice or demand.  This provision will survive the termination or 
expiration of the Agreement for a period of two years. 
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II.   QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS: 
 
Q1. The City mentions “densifying” locations as part of its Office Modernization Program.  Is this 

intended to mean that the city is planning on assigning a higher number of people than the 
number of workstations in certain areas or for certain teams (e.g. 1.2 to 1 seating ratio)?  If not, 
could the City please elaborate on its definition of “densifying?” 

  
A1. It is possible that City buildings will have more staff than workstations due to potential sharing of 

space. 
 
Q2. a. Does the City pull actual utilization data from security badge access readers? 

b. Are there any other utilization sources like sensors or beacons that need to feed into the 
space system? 

 
A2. a. Not at this time. 
 b. Not at this time. 
 
Q3. Are mobile capabilities in support of employees finding spaces or people on the floorplans of 

interest to the City? 
 
A3. The City could potentially be interested in this in the future. 
 
Q4. a. Does the City have an accurate listing of who-sits-where down to the desk level today? 

b. How is this information maintained? 
 
A4. a.  Not at this time. 

b. The information in currently maintained through the use of SAP, Outlook and Intranet. 
However, this is only for work location and floor and not actual desk. 

 
Q5. a. Are there any buildings/floors/zones that are currently unassigned seating? 

b. Is the City looking to embrace flexible seating for certain teams or is it firmly focused on 1:1 
seating for the foreseeable future? 

 
A5. a. Yes, in some locations there are touch down spaces 
 b. The City is currently reviewing opportunities for both mentioned scenarios 
 
Q6. Does the city wish to setup automated integrations with its HR and Finance systems for 

personnel information and for the organizational hierarchy? 
 
A6. Not at this time. 
 
Q7. What system or systems are in place today?  
 
A7. The systems currently in place are SAP and CAD 
 
Q8. How many users would be professional/back office users that actually manage the data and 

workflow processing (add/modify/delete/create & run reports)? 
 
A8. There would be approximately 6 to 8 users. 
 
Q9. How many users would be self-service/front office users (only view data and/or submit 

requests)? 
 
A9. There would be approximately 50 to 100 users. 
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Q10. Regarding implementation, what is your desired “go-live” date? 
 
A10. Implementation is currently planned for Q3/Q4 2017. 
 
Q11. What compelling event or key business driver, if any, is influencing the timing of this project? 
 
A11. We need to standardize data and collection. 
 
Q12. Is there a budget for this project? 
 
A12. Yes, but we are not disclosing this information at this time. 
 
Q13. Would you consider that a Hosted deployment model for your final solution? While both the 

hosted and SaaS model allows the vendor to provide the entire software stack, there is a 
difference in access. The hosted model allows your IT personnel access to the server and 
database and more control over the software (upgrade timing), add-on functionality and more. A 
true SaaS model provides a limited access to your IT personnel to modify the software in use. 
Hosted can also be set up to carry a similar monthly charge and deployed in (cloud) 
environment, just as a True SaaS, but offers some significant benefits.  

 
A13. The City is not considering an internally hosted solution. 
 
Q14. Section E1.1.1(b).3 states “The solution and Vendor must have proper controls in place 

ensuring timely removal of systems access which is no longer required for business purposes.” 
We are a little unclear of the definition, will you please clarify the intention of the removal? Is it 
an access timeout for systems access when IT personnel have connected and become inactive 
for a substantial period of time? Is it for the application solution for discontinued employees to 
view City of Toronto data, or for a timely removal of IT personnel who are no longer employees 
within the City of Toronto. 

 
A14. The intention is if someone is leaving the organization or terminated, the solution should allow to 

disable or remove their account. 
 
Q15. Will the City accept a SaaS solution where the secure data center is hosted in the United 

States?  Or is it a requirement for the SaaS solution to be hosted on Canadian soil? 
 
A15. It is not a requirement for the solution to be hosted in Canada. 
 
Q16. Clarification or definition is needed for Confidential Information of the City.  If City considers only 

Use Data would be Confidential Information, then no exception needed. 
 
A16. Only Use Data is considered Confidential Information for this solution. 
 
All other terms and conditions remain the same. 
 
Please attach this addendum to your Request for Proposal document as it will be included as part of 
your proposal and will be governed accordingly.  
 
NOTE: Proponents are reminded that they are required to acknowledge all addenda in the 
spaces provided on the Proposal Submission Form 1 or your proposal will be declared non-
compliant. 
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Should you have any questions regarding this addendum, contact Theo Maicantis, Corporate Buyer at 
tmaican@toronto.ca  

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sabrina Dipietro, Supervisor 
Purchasing, Goods and Services 

mailto:tmaican@toronto.ca

